


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/




Colfax City Council 
July 13, 2016 
Page 2 of 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Currently, there are three CCE programs operating in California and over twenty under 
consideration or in the development process. The CCEs currently operational in California 
are the Marin Energy Authority, Sonoma Clean Power and the City of Lancasterôs 
Lancaster Choice Energy. Programs under exploration or development include:  

¶ Peninsula Clean Energy (San Mateo County)  

¶ Silicon Valley Community Choice Energy Partnership (Santa Clara County)  

¶ Redwood Coast Energy Agency (Humboldt and Mendocino Counties),   

¶ Clean Power SF (City and County of San Francisco) 

¶ the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Lake, Los Angeles, Monterey, Napa, San 
Benito, Santa Cruz, San Diego, Ventura, and Yolo  
 

It is expected that, within the next five years, 60% of California electricity ratepayers will 
be covered by a CCE program. 
 
The main premise of CCE is aggregation of energy load and the economic sale created 
by the combined load of the unincorporated area, and the cities which would be beneficial 
to the overall energy portfolio management of a CCE in Placer County. If a CCE program 
is implemented in Placer County, the CCE could include the cities of Rocklin, Lincoln, 
Loomis, Auburn and Colfax, in addition to the Countyôs unincorporated area. Roseville is 
precluded by law from participating in a CCE due to its own Roseville Electric utility. 
Below is the breakdown of the combined load of the five cities and the unincorporated 
area of Placer County. 
 

Unincorporated Placer County 653,797,756 KWh 49.2% 

Rocklin 314,622,151 KWh 23.7% 

Lincoln 218,317,922 KWh 16.4% 

Auburn 89,588,179 KWh 6.7% 

Loomis 37,331,980 KWh 2.8% 

Colfax 14,541,320 KWh 1.1% 

Roseville*  1,674,675 KWh 0.1% 

Total: 1,329,873,983 KWh 100.0% 
  *PG&E accounts within Roseville City limits. 

Placer 

CCA 

Homes & Businesses 





Colfax City Council 
July 13, 2016 
Page 4 of 9 
 
 
CCE Development Phases: 
County staff have delineated three phases from initial investigation to operations for a 
CCE in Placer County. Those phases are: 
 

1. Phase I ï Assessment, Due Diligence and Planning 
2. Phase II ï Implementation and Start-Up 
3. Phase III ï Operations 

 
The major components of Phase I ï Assessment, Due Diligence and Planning include:  

1) assessment of economic feasibility  
2) due diligence related to opportunities and risks 
3) planning, which will result in timelines, tasks, and budget and finances,  
    necessary to establish a CCE 
 

The major components of Phase II - Implementation and Start-up include:  
1) finalizing joint powers authority (JPA) agreements between the County and 

partner cities  
2) finalization and approval of the Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent 

(CPUC approval required)  
3) approval of start-up budget and financing plans  
4) approval of staffing and outsourcing plans 
5) initial hiring and execution of outsourcing contracts 
6) execution of service agreements with IOUs 
7) posting of collateral deposits, letters of credit, and other credentials necessary 

for energy transactions 
8) establishment of energy contracts and energy portfolio management programs 

 
Upon approval of a JPA agreement between the County and the participating entities, the 
JPA board will begin governance. 
 
The major components of Phase III - Operations include: 

1) initiation of service including data and financial transfers between IOU and the 
CCE and ongoing customer support 

2) energy portfolio management and energy market and trading transactions 
3) purchase, development and ownership (including management and operations) 

of energy generation facilities 
4) Operations continue under the JPA board. 

 
Phase I ï Assessment, Due Diligence and Planning Update: 
In July 2015, a Declaration Regarding Investigation, Pursuit or Implementation of 
Community Choice Aggregation was sent by Placer County to Pacific Gas & Electric 
(PG&E) as the initial step in requesting electrical load data for Placer County. Similar 
correspondence was sent to Liberty Energy in late October 2015. Outreach and 
discussions with PG&E and Liberty Energy have been ongoing since then. During the 







Colfax City Council 
July 13, 2016 
Page 7 of 9 
 
To complete Phase I, the following tasks need to be completed: 

a. Incorporate load data and financial feasibility into the Implementation Plan 
b. Determine participation for each cities and develop JPA structure 
c. Complete the Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent, including 

staffing, outsourcing, budgets, financing and business plan 
d. Commence public outreach, market research, and education including 

presentations to city councils 
e. Monitor legislative and regulatory activities 

 
Operational revenues and expenditures are being incorporated into a phased 
implementation plan pro-forma. The operational pro-forma and financing plan were 
presented to the Board of Supervisors at their June 21st, meeting. The financing plan 
provides for the County to be reimbursed for expenditure and staff costs if a CCE is 
implemented. 
 
The feasibility analysis indications are that a CCE established and operated in the PG&E 
territory of Placer County is likely to produce revenues sufficient to cover energy portfolio 
costs, administrative costs, operational costs, and additionally, provide economic 
development incentives while lowering energy costs to ratepayers.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
Based on preliminary findings, a CCE in Placer County is likely to optimize development, 
expansion and utilization of local energy resources leading to greater economic benefit 
and opportunities for the residents and businesses of Placer County. A Placer County 
CCE can provide: ratepayer choice, economic incentives for business location, expansion 
and retention, and provide at least marginal reductions in overall rates. A Placer County 
CCE would be designed to meet or exceed all mandated renewable and non-carbon 
energy portfolio standards and contribute to the Countyôs AB 32 requirements related to 
managing greenhouse gas emissions over time. A Placer County CCE could prove to be 
a useful tool in helping to make communities in Placer County more economically robust. 
It may also be a catalyst for innovative partnerships with other jurisdictions and the private 
sector. 
 
 







City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes June 22, 2016 
 

Councilmember Stockwin 
¶ Councilmember Stockwin stated the National Cannabis Industry Association held a 

convention in Oakland with 3000 in attendance.  California is the largest market in 
the country for marijuana.  The industry is not going away. 

¶ He attended the Mosquito and Vector Control District Board meeting.  Placer 
County has had no reports of West Nile or Zika Virus.  The district currently has 
enough mosquito fish to self-sustain their use in the County for mosquito control. 

¶ He reported Utah companies are proposing sending coal to California ports for 
export to China.  Colfax has the potential to see up to 4 six-mile-long trains daily.  
Since coal is usually uncovered this will cause pollution and potential for other 
mishaps.  He suggested Council send a letter to the Oakland City Council 
encouraging them to prevent the use of their port for coal transportation.  He 
offered to draft the letter.   
Councilmember Hesch added he will present this issue to the Air Quality Board for 
discussion. 
Mayor Pro Tem Harvey stated uncovered coal cars which operate in the Midwest 
are not an issue. 

Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass attended the Sierra Vista Community Center (SVCC) 

Board meeting.  They discussed creating a heating/cooling center at the SVCC. 
¶ At the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), the board discussed the 

need to prevent crude oil shipments by rail into the region. 
¶ The SEDCorp discussion revolved around the issues associated with the transient 

population but no conclusive action plan was developed. 
¶ California Highway Patrol Officer Chris Nave sent his regards and is facilitating the 

Little League Championship at the ball field in his role as Little League President. 
¶ Councilmember Douglass offered to be the second alternate for WACMAC.  The last 

meeting was canceled at the last minute due to a lack of a quorum.  He is willing to 
step in on-call if necessary. 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Harvey had nothing to report.  

 

3B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  
¶ City Manager Miller stated the business next to City Hall is slated to open soon.  
¶ He thanked the Green Machine for putting together what promises to be a great 3rd 

of July Celebration.  He stated the dedicated volunteers in Colfax are much 
appreciated. 

¶ The final documents for the Winner Chevrolet purchase agreement have been 
signed.  The appraisal came in at $580,000.  Winner Chevrolet may become the 
fleet center for Northern California which will bring extra sales tax income to town. 

¶ The Grant application for the California Energy Commission for DC Fast Charging 
Stations has been submitted.  It was a very professional package put together by 
lead agency, Truckee-Donner Public Utility District. 

¶ The City received the animal control contract from Placer County Animal Control.  
He spoke with the director and expressed his displeasure that the contract was 
submitted too late for this agenda and contained an increase in fees.  





City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes June 22, 2016 
 

¶ The organizers are still looking for about 30 volunteers.  
 

5 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 
5A. Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance 529 of the City of Colfax Regulating 

Marijuana Cultivation, Dispensary, Delivery and Use. 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Introduce the proposed Ordinance 529, an Ordinance of the City of 
Colfax amending the Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 17.162 covering cultivation, 
dispensaries, use, delivery, and revenue requirements of medical marijuana in the City of 
Colfax, by title only, waive the first reading and continue for a second reading at the July 
13, 2016 City Council meeting. 
 
City Manager Miller stated this is a comprehensive ordinance which has been developed 
with Council direction.  The ordinance needs to be adopted with 2 readings in order to put 
a measure the November ballot. 
Councilmember Hesch remarked the County Board of Supervisors decision impacts the 
City ordinance.  He feels this proposed Colfax ordinance does not give enough detail about 
how and who will enforce regulations and tax collection.  He is concerned it does not state 
how much reduction the constituents will receive on their sewer service charges.  He 
recommends Council read the County ordinance before adopting the Colfax ordinance.  He 
asked Council to consider postponing the readings and hearing for the ordinance for a 
month. 
Councilmember Stockwin asked if approval of the ordinance can be delayed. 
City Attorney Cabral stated he agrees it would be useful to wait to approve the ordinance 
which can be approved any time before November 8. 
Councilmember Stockwin stated if Council postpones the vote on the ordinance 
councilmembers should take the time to talk with those who work in the industry.  He 
wants a definite schedule for approval.  This topic must go to the constituents for a vote as 
promised. 
Foxey McCleary stated she is in favor of having a dispensary in town because she knows 
people with cancer who benefit from medical marijuana. 
Connie Heilaman mentioned she read an article that youth in Colorado are less interested 
in marijuana now that it is legal. 
Shane Richie, a certified medical marijuana grower from Auburn, encouraged Council to 
move forward with the ordinance to legalize and regulate medical marijuana. 
Jim Dion of the Colfax Theater stated Colfax is the only hope in Placer County for safe and 
affordable medical marijuana.  He stated the tax revenues should go to the general fund.  
He requested the Council allow him to reopen his business now. 
 
On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, Council 
voted to postpone hearing the ordinance until the first meeting in August; August 10, 
2016. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Stockwin 
ABSENT: Parnham 
 
 

5 of 6





 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE  JULY 13, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Interim City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: June 29, 2016 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: May 2016 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: May 2016. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements.  Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget process yearly. 
The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
May 2016.   
Monthly highlights include: 

¶ General Fund Reserved Cash is tracking consistently with previous years and our General Fund Reserve 
balance has been met consistently for the past sixteen months. 

¶ The 2nd installment (Teeter 45%) of property taxes and delinquent charges was received from Placer Co. 

¶ Negative fund balances in Restricted and Capital Funds are due to timing of funding allocations and 
reimbursements.   

¶ Full funding is expected for Fund 250 ς The first payment of Local Transportation funds from PCTPA 
(50% of annual apportionment) was received in March ς the balance is expected by June.  Funds are also 
scheduled to be transferred from Fund 253 Gas Taxes as budgeted (estimate is approximately $30K) 

¶ Capital Fund 350 (UPPR Ped Xing Project) received PTSMEA funding from PCTPA in February and the first 
reimbursement payment from Cal Trans ($244K) has been received in March.  Final project costs were 
paid in June ς and will be followed up with a reimbursement request to Cal Trans.  Union Pacific costs 
over budget are being reviewed. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis ς Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report ς by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 3B

























City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 25-2016 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
RICHARDSON & COMPANY, LLP TO PROVIDE ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is required by law to have its financial records audited 
on an annual basis; and 

 
WHEREAS, Richardson & Company, LLP is under contract with the City to provide 

such services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the City 

to extend the existing contract with Richardson & Company, LLP for an additional year and 
engage that firm to conduct an audit of the City’s financial records for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 

follows: 
1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute an 

agreement extending the contract with Richardson & Co to provide auditing services for 
City Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

2. The City Council authorizes the appropriation and/or expenditure of a 
Professional Services fee of $16,800 plus mileage expenses and a Single Audit fee of $2,625 
to provide the services authorized by this Resolution. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th day of July, 2016 
by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES:    
NOES:      
ABSTAIN:     
ABSENT:  
 
       ____________________________ 
       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  





 

 

Audit Objectives 

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards Government 
Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards



Management Responsibilities 





















City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 27-2016 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC. FOR AN INTERESECTION CONTROL 
EVALUATION FOR THE SOUTH AUBURN STREET ROUNDABOUT IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $19,230 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax desires an Intersection Control Evaluation for the 

South Auburn Street/ I-80 westbound ramp intersection; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax has received a scope of work from Mark Thomas & 

Company, Inc. to perform the requested service; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding for the proposed project is available from Fund 210 – Mitigation 

Funds – Roads. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to execute on behalf and in the name of the City of Colfax a 
professional services contract with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. for the preparation of an 
Intersection Control Evaluation as described in Exhibit A attached to this Resolution. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th day of July, 2016 
by the following vote of the Council: 

 
AYES:    
NOES:      
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:     
  
 
       ____________________________ 
       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  



 

7300 Folsom Boulevard, Suite 203  Sacramento, CA 95826 
www.markthomas.com  Tel: (916) 381-9100 Fax: (916) 381-9180 

M A R K  T H O M A S  &  C O M P A N Y ,  I N C .  
Providing Engineering, Surveying and Planning Services 

June 23, 2016               
   

Mr. Wes Heathcock 
Community Services Director ‐ City of Colfax 
33 South Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

 
RE: SOUTH AUBURN STREET ROUNDABOUT – Intersection Control Evaluation

 

Dear Mr. Heathcock: 

Based on our meeting a few weeks ago, Mark Thomas & Company (MTCo) has prepared the scope 
and fee below to complete an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) for the South Auburn Street 
intersection with the Caltrans  I‐80 ramps. The potential  location  is along South Auburn Street 
adjacent to the I‐80 entrance and exit ramps, and it would serve a proposed development on the 
north  side  of  the  roadway.  The  Roundabout  would  serve  as  the  main  entrance  to  the 
development, but  it would also need to accommodate access to the existing strip mall on the 
north side of the property and a McDonald’s on the south side of the property.  

The  intent  of  the  ICE  is  to  review  a  conceptual  roundabout  layout  and  compare  it  to  a 
conventional  traffic signal. Caltrans will have an opportunity  review and comment on  the  ICE 
document.  While  no  Caltrans  approvals  will  be  given  during  this  process,  Caltrans  staff  can 
“concur”  with  the  feasibility  of  a  roundabout  at  this  location.  With  this  concurrence, 
development activity can move forward with less potential risk.   

This  scope  of  work  includes  a  capacity  analysis  for  the  roundabout,  and  a  summary  report 
comparing the two intersection alternatives.  

 

Task 1 Project Management& Meetings 

MTCo’s Project Manager will plan, organize, direct and monitor project work activities and attend 
meetings with the City and developer. For purposes of this scope, we have allowed for a total of 
two  (2) meetings; one to discuss preliminary concepts and one  following development of the 
feasibility analysis.  

The estimated fee for this task is $800. 

Task 2 Preliminary Topographic Surveys  

MTCo will perform one (1) day of surveys to prepare an existing conditions surface. This will allow 
for  more  accurate  cost  estimates  to  be  prepared,  specifically  related  to  any  grade  changes 
required for the project. 

The estimated fee for this task is $2,500 

 





3 

A comparative analysis of signalization of the intersection versus installation of a roundabout will 
then  be  conducted,  with  the  results  presented  in  an  easily  understood  tabular  format.  The 
comparative analysis will consider the following issues: 

¶ Intersection and approach LOS and delay 

¶ Vehicle queuing and interactions with adjacent intersections and driveways 

¶ Pedestrian and bicycle safety 

¶ Speeds and traffic calming 

¶ Vehicle safety 

¶ Reserve capacity and ability to accommodate growth 

¶ Impact to emergency vehicles 

¶ Impact to transit and truck traffic 

¶ Impact on access to the nearby church and residential dwellings 

¶ Impact on utilities 

¶ Impacts to air quality and fuel consumption 

Per  the  ICE  guidelines,  construction  cost  estimate  and  life  cycle  cost  comparisons  will  be 
prepared. The life cycle costs will consider roadway user costs and maintenance costs for a design 
life of 20 years. 

A technical report summarizing the operational and safety analyses, the preliminary footprints 
of the roundabout and signal improvements, and life cycle cost comparisons will be prepared and 
submitted.  

The estimated fee for this task is $12,000 

Summary 

The total anticipated fee for these tasks is $19,230. The anticipated schedule for completion is as 
follows. 

¶ Topographic Surveys – 2 weeks after Notice to Proceed 

¶ Roundabout Capacity Analysis – 4 Weeks after Notice to Proceed 

¶ Final ICE Report – 12 weeks after Notice to Proceed 

We are looking forward to working with you on the delivery of this project, and if you have any 
questions please feel free to give me a call.  

Sincerely, 

 

James Pangburn 
Project Manager ‐ Sacramento 

5 of 16



MTC & Company, Inc. Contract 7.13.2016 Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this July 14, 2016 by and between the City 
of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and  
Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. ɉȰConsultant").  
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in 
Exhibit A hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform 
the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
 

Section 1. Services 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  
 

Section 2. Time of Completion.  
 

Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  Performance of 
the Services shall progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in 
Exhibit A.  During the performance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with 
written progress reports at least once each month and at such additional intervals as City 
may from time to time request.  
 

Section 3. Compensation. 
 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 
its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month.  Such invoices shall itemize all charges in 
such detail as may reasonably be required by City in the usual course of City 

6 of 16









MTC & Company, Inc. Contract 7.13.2016 Page 5 

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 
this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 
forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this 
Agreement to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do 
so. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by City. 

 

H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's 
insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, 
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance 
or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and 
provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may 
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required 
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant 
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7. Subcontracts.  
 

Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any 
such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
Section 8. Assignment.  
 

Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 
 
 





MTC & Company, Inc. Contract 7.13.2016 Page 7 

 

Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 

Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 

Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 







MTC & Company, Inc. Contract 7.13.2016 Page 10 

 

Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
 

Section 22. Written Notification. 
 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 

If to Consultant:  Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 
   7300 Folsom Blvd. Suite 203 
   Sacramento, CA 95826 
 
 

Section 23. Execution. 
 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 





 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE JULY 13, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock 

DATE: July 7, 2016 
SUBJECT: Recology Contract First Amendment   

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:    

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 28-2016 authorizing the City Manager to execute the first 
amendment with Recology Auburn Placer for an additional term of 15-years with an automatic 5-year 
extension and optional 5-year extension and include additional solid waste programs for the community.  

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The City of Colfax entered into a contractual agreement with Recology to provide solid waste collection services within the 
City limits in 2011.  During the contract time, Recology has forgone an accumulative 8.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 
that was built into the contract while the community recovered from the recession.  Recology has recently expressed 
interest in a contract amendment to eliminate the backdated /h[!Ωǎ in exchange for a contract extension beyond the 
original termination year, 2021.  The proposed contract extension is for 15-years, with a 5-year automatic extension, and 
an additional optional 5-year extension. In total, the proposed contract would expire in 2036 with the additional 
extensions potentially carrying the contract to the year 2046.  
 
In addition to the waiving the past COLAΩǎ, staff negotiated with Recology to postpone the άǇŀǎǎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘέ landfill tipping 
fee increase that went into effect at the Western Placer Waste Management Authority in 2015 until July 1, 2017.  The 
tipping fee increase is $1.00 per ton of Municipal Solid Waste received at the facility.  Under the proposed contract 
extension, Recology would not receive their first COLA until July 1, 2017. 
 
The City residents and commercial customers will also receive services not currently in the existing contract ς  
 

¶ Residential:  Curbside pick-up of oil, oil filters, and antifreeze; citywide street sweeping services (City owned streets); 
and an annual green waste clean-up program (offered at a central location) 

¶ Commercial:  AB1826 mandatory organic food waste collection 
 

The aforementioned services will be provided to the customers with no additional charges to the current collection rate 
schedule. 
 
The final proposed benefit to the community is a recommended change in the contract with a shift from a flat franchise fee 
rate to a percentage based on gross revenue collected, ǿƛǘƘ ŀƴ ŀǳŘƛǘ ƻŦ wŜŎƻƭƻƎȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ōƻƻƪǎ ŜǾŜǊȅ р ȅŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ 
guarantee the franchise fee has been calculated correctly.  The proposed franchise fee will shift from the $43,000 flat rate 
to 10% of gross revenue, which is comparable to the existing flat rate the City receives under the existing contract terms. 
Shifting to a percentage base franchise fee allows for equitable distribution ƻŦ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅΩǎ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎΣ 
therefore, the fees will adjust based on the service level to the community and any increases in population.  The cost of the 
financial audit will be paid by Recology up to $7000. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 28-2016 
2. Recology Contract Extension 







2 
 

the parties hereunder; provided, however, that should the PRC's definitions be made 
obligatory by the state legislature on the City, then the conflicting PRC definitions shall 
apply.) 

AB 939. "AB 939" shall mean the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, 
Public Resources Code Section 40000 et seq., as it may be amended from time to time.  

Affiliate. "Affiliate" means any of the Contractor's officers, directors or shareholders, and 
any corporation, partnership, joint venture or other entity directly or indirectly controlling 
the Contractor, or directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the Contractor or its 
officers, directors or shareholders.  

Applicable Law. "Applicable Law" means all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, rules, orders, judgments, decrees, permits, approvals, or other 
requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, including Environmental 
Laws, that are in force on the Commencement Date and as they may be enacted, 
issued or amended during the term of this Agreement.  

Bulky Waste. "Bulky Waste" means large items of Solid Waste, such as appliances, 
furniture, large auto parts, trees, branches, stumps and other oversize wastes. Bulky 
Waste does not include waste that has been placed in a bin or drop box.  

CalRecycle. "CaIRecycle" means the California Department of Resources Recycling 
and Recovery, or its successor.  

Carts. "Carts" means Toter brand or equivalent carts with 32-, 64-or 96-gallon capacity, 
colored black or grey for Solid Waste or green for Green Waste.  

City. "City" means the City of Colfax, a California municipal corporation.  

City Council. "City Council" means the City Council of the City of Colfax.  

City Manager. "City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Colfax or his or her 
designee.  

Commencement Date. "Commencement Date" means July 14, 2016.  

Commercial Premises. "Commercial Premises" means all premises within the Franchise 
Area used for commercial, institutional, non-profit and/or industrial purposes.  

Contractor. "Contractor" shall mean Recology Auburn Placer, a California corporation, 
and shall also mean any assignee, transferee or successor in interest of said 
corporation.  

Disposal Fees. "Disposal Fees" means any and all fees or charges payable by 
Contractor for the disposal and/or processing of Solid Waste collected pursuant to this 
Agreement. As of the Commencement Date, because Contractor is required to deliver 
all Solid Waste and Green Waste collected pursuant to this Agreement to the Landfill 
and/or Materials Recovery Facility, and because the Western Placer Waste 
Management Authority currently owns such facilities, all Disposal Fees and Processing 



3 
 

Fees shall initially be paid by Contractor to the Western Placer Waste Management 
Authority.  

Environmental Law. "Environmental Law" means all applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
orders, judgments, decrees, permits, approvals, or other requirements of any 
governmental agency governing Solid Waste, Hazardous Waste or Hazardous 
Materials, including, without limitation, AB 939 and CERCLA, that are in force on the 
Commencement Date and as they may be enacted, issued or amended during the Term 
of this Agreement.  

Franchise Area. "Franchise Area" shall mean the entire area within the boundaries of 
the City of Colfax city limits as of the Commencement Date, as they may thereafter be 
changed by reason of annexation or de-annexation.  

Franchise Fee. "Franchise Fee" means the fee imposed by the City on Contractor 
pursuant to Section 4.2.  

Green Waste. "Green Waste" means organic material from trees, shrubs, grass and 
other vegetation, including without limitation lawn clippings, leaves and small branches. 
Green Waste does not include plastic bags, bricks, rocks, gravel, large quantities of dirt, 
concrete, sod, non-organic wastes, loose fruits and vegetables, tree trunks, stumps, 
palm fronds, branches more than six inches in diameter or three feet in length, or pet 
waste.  

Gross Revenue. ñGross Revenueò means all revenue amounts from the provision of 
collection services pursuant to this Agreement,  that is recognized by the Contractor in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting  Principles (GAAP), provided, 
however, the term Gross Revenue,  shall not include (i) any revenues generated from 
the sale of Recyclable Material, or from late fees or similar finance charges, (ii) any 
amount collected in respect to the Refuse Disposal Surcharge or any other surcharge 
imposed by a governmental entity, or (iii) any receipts from state and local government 
accounts (e.g. grants, cash awards and rebates)  relating to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

Hazardous Waste or Materials. "Hazardous Waste" or "Hazardous Materials" means 
any and all of the following:  

Wastes, materials or substances defined or characterized as Hazardous Waste by the 
Federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended, including RCRA (42 U.S.C. Section 
6901, et seq.) as amended from time to time, or regulations promulgated thereunder;  

Waste, materials or substances defined or characterized from time to time as 
Hazardous Waste by the principal agencies of the State of California (including, without 
limitation, the Department of Health Services, the Department of Toxic Substances 
Control, the California Water Resources Control Board, and CalRecycle) having 
jurisdiction over Hazardous Waste generated by facilities within the State, and pursuant 
to any other applicable governmental regulations;  





5 
 

Organic Waste  ñOrganic Wasteò means food waste, green waste, landscape & pruning 
waste, nonhazardous wood waste, and food-soiled paper that is mixed in with food 
waste.  

Person. "Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
liability company, trust or other legal entity.  

Processing Fees. "Processing Fees" means any and all fees or charges payable by 
Contractor for the processing of Green Waste collected pursuant to this Agreement.  

Recyclables or Recyclable Material. "Recyclables" or "Recyclable Material" means 
discarded materials which could be reused or processed, or are in the future reused or 
processed into a form suitable for reuse through reprocessing or remanufacture, 
consistent with the requirements of AB 939. The terms "Recyclables" or "Recyclable 
Material" include transformable and compostable materials. The terms "Recyclables" or 
"Recyclable Material" include paper, newsprint, printed matter, pasteboard, paper 
containers, cardboard, glass, aluminum, PET, HDPE, and other plastics, beverage 
containers, compostable materials, brick and stone in reusable size and condition, and 
such other materials reasonably designated as Recyclables by the City Council or the 
Director of Community Services, or designated as Recyclables by CalRecycle, or other 
agency with jurisdiction.  

Recycling and Recycled. "Recycling" and "Recycled" refers to processing, cleansing, 
treating, and reconstituting materials that would otherwise become or remain Solid 
Waste, and returning them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for 
new, reused, or reconstituted products or biomass that qualifies for diversion credit by 
CalRecycle. "Recycling" also refers to the processing and beneficial reuse of materials, 
to the extent that the beneficial reuse of these materials qualifies for diversion credit by 
CalRecycle. "Recycling" does not include "transformation," which is defined in PRC 
Section 40201.  

Single-Family Unit. "Single-Family Unit" means a dwelling which includes one or two 
individual living units.  

Solid Waste. "Solid Waste" means all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semi-solid, 
and liquid wastes, including residential, industrial, commercial and municipal garbage, 
trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction 
wastes, discarded home and industrial appliances, Recyclable Materials, manure, 
vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and semi-
solid wastes; but excludes Hazardous Wastes, Special Wastes and Medical Wastes.  

Solid Waste Program Manager. "Solid Waste Program Manager" means the City 
Manager or his or her designee.  

Special Waste. "Special Waste" means any designated wastes, as defined in 23 
California Code of Regulations §2522, and special handling waste generated by 
industrial facilities or processes, but shall not include "Hazardous Waste" as defined 
herein. Special Wastes include: asbestos, sewage sludge, water treatment sludge, 
drilling muds, grease wastes, contaminated soils, shredder waste, agricultural wastes, 



6 
 

filter cake/de-watered sludge, spent catalyst fines, refinery ash and by-products; except 
where any such wastes are deemed to be Hazardous Waste.  

Term. "Term" means the term of this Agreement, as described in Section 1.3 below.  

Universal Waste. "Universal Waste" means electronics related waste including 
household batteries, automotive batteries, mercury thermometers, fluorescent lamps 
and electronic devices including televisions and computer monitors, computers, printers, 
VCRs, cell phones, telephones, radios, portable DVD players with video screens, and 
microwave ovens; but does not include large appliances.  

 

 

1.2  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF CONTRACTOR  

Contractor hereby makes the following representations and warranties for the 
benefit of City as of the Commencement Date:  

1.2.1  Contractor is duly organized and validly existing as a corporation in good 
standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation and is qualified to do business in 
the State of California, with full legal right and power to enter into and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement.  

1.2.2  Contractor has full legal right, power, and authority to execute, deliver, and 
perform this Agreement, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement by all necessary and proper action by its Board of Directors and 
shareholders, as necessary.  

1.2.3  The Persons signing this Agreement on behalf of Contractor have been 
authorized by Contractor to do so, and this Agreement has been duly executed and 
delivered by Contractor in accordance with the authorization of its Board of Directors 
and shareholders, as necessary, and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of 
Contractor enforceable against Contractor in accordance with its terms.  

1.2.4  Neither the execution and delivery by Contractor of this Agreement, nor 
the performance by Contractor of its obligations hereunder:  

(a) conflicts with, violates or will result in a violation of any existing 
Applicable Law;   

(b) conflicts with, violates or will result in a breach or default under any 
term or condition of any valid and existing judgment, order or decree of any court, 
administrative agency or other governmental authority, or of any existing 
agreement or instrument, to which either Contractor is a party or by which either 
Contractor or any of its properties or assets is bound; or  

(c) will result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or 
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of 

8 of 48



7 
 

Contractor which will interfere materially with Contractor's performance 
hereunder.  

1.2.5  There is no action, suit, proceeding or, to the best of Contractor's 
knowledge, investigation, at law or equity, before or by any court or governmental entity, 
pending or threatened against Contractor or otherwise affecting Contractor, wherein an 
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding, in any single case or in the aggregate, would 
materially adversely affect Contractor's performance hereunder, or which, in any way, 
would adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, or which would 
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of Contractor.  

1.2.6  Contractor has sufficient financial resources to perform all aspects of its 
obligations hereunder.  

1.2.7  Contractor has the expert, professional, and technical capability to perform 
all of its obligations under this Agreement.  

1.2.8  Contractor has made an independent investigation (satisfactory to it) of 
the conditions and circumstances surrounding this Agreement and the work to be 
performed by Contractor under this Agreement, and enters into this Agreement on the 
basis of that independent investigation.  

1.3  TERM  

1.3.1  Base Term of Agreement. The base term of this Agreement shall 
commence on the Commencement Date and terminate on July 14, 2036.  

1.3.2  Automatic Extension. The Term of this Agreement shall automatically be 
extended for an additional five years, so as to terminate on July 14, 2041, unless 
Contractor is in material breach of this Agreement upon the expiration of the base term, 
or one of the parties has timely requested termination of this Agreement on July 14, 
2036. To make such request timely, notice of termination of the Agreement must be 
provided in writing to the other party on or before 5:00 pm on December 31, 2035.  

1.3.3 Optional Extension. If the Term has been automatically extended pursuant 
to Section 1.3.2, then City and Contractor may extend the Term for an additional five (5) 
years, so as to terminate on July 14, 2046, by mutual consent in writing at least sixty 
days prior to the expiration date of the automatic extension. Contractor acknowledges 
that any such extension must be approved by the City Council to become effective.  

1.3.4 No Prohibition On Amendments. Nothing herein shall be construed to 
prohibit amendments to Contractor's scope of work at any time during the Term of this 
Agreement, by mutual consent of the parties.  

2.  FRANCHISE SCOPE, SERVICES AND PROGRAMS  

2.1  GRANT OF FRANCHISE  

2.1.1  Grant of Franchise. City hereby grants to Contractor, for the Term of and 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the exclusive privilege and right 





























21 
 

together with such other data and supporting documentation as may be reasonably 
required to substantiate such party's position.  

4.3.2  If Contractor is the moving party, then, upon providing reasonable 
justification to City that such a change occurred and that it caused Contractor's costs to 
increase or its revenues to decrease, Contractor shall be entitled to an increase in 
Maximum Rates in an amount sufficient to cover all Contractor's reasonable increased 
costs (plus a 10% profit margin) or decreased revenues arising out of or relating to such 
change from the dates such increased costs or decreased revenues occurred. City shall 
use its best efforts to ensure that Maximum Rates are so increased within 60 days after 
Contractor submits its application.  

4.3.3  If City is the moving party, then, upon providing reasonable justification to 
Contractor that such a change occurred and that it caused Contractor's costs to 
decrease or its revenues to increase, City shall be entitled to reduce Maximum Rates in 
an amount not greater than Contractor's reasonable decreased costs (plus a 10% profit 
margin) or increased revenues arising out of or relating to such change from the dates 
such decreased costs or increased revenues occurred. Contractor shall be entitled to at 
least 60 days' advance written notice and an opportunity to be heard by and present 
evidence to the City Council if the City initiates proceedings to reduce Maximum Rates 
hereunder.  

4.4  ADJUSTMENTS FOR CHANGES IN SCOPE  

If City wishes Contractor to change its services under this Agreement (including 
changes to enable City to comply with regulatory changes), or to provide new services, 
then City shall notify Contractor in writing, and the parties shall negotiate in good faith 
for a period of 60 days the terms of such new or changed services and the 
compensation payable to Contractor with respect to such new or changed services. 
Contractor shall not be required to begin providing such new or changed services until 
the City Council has adopted Maximum Rates mutually agreed by City and Contractor 
to compensate Contractor for such new changed services, and such Maximum Rates 
have taken effect.  

4.5  ANNUAL COLA ADJUSTMENT METHODOLOGY  

The Service Cost component of each Maximum Rate shall be adjusted for a cost 
of living adjustment (COLA) effective on July 1st of each year during the Term of this 
Agreement for the succeeding Operating Year, commencing July 1, 2017. Contractor 
shall submit its calculation of the COLA to City on or before May 1 of each year.  

The COLA shall be determined as follows:  

COLA =  0.10 + 0.45 x (ECli/ECIO) + 0.45 x (PPli/PPIO)  

OY =   Operating Year commencing each July 1st and ending the 
subsequent June 30th.  





















31 
 

(iii)  "Inclusion of the City as an insured shall not affect the City's 
rights as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment brought or 
recovered against contractor. This policy shall protect Contractor and the 
City in the same manner as though a separate policy had been issued to 
each, but this shall not operate to increase the insurer's liability as set forth 
in the policy beyond the amount shown or to which the insurer would have 
been liable if only one party had been named as an insured."  

(c)  The Property Insurance policy shall contain the following 
endorsement:  

(i)  Waiver of subrogation against the City.  

5.7.3  Delivery of Proof of Coverage. No later than ten (10) business days after 
the execution of this Agreement by the parties, Contractor shall furnish the City 
certificate(s) of insurance covering each policy of insurance required under this Section 
5.7, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the City. Each such certificate 
shall show the type and amount of coverage, effective dates and dates of expiration of 
policies, and all required endorsements. If the City requests, copies of each policy, 
together with all endorsements, shall also be promptly delivered to the City.  At City's 
request, Contractor shall furnish updated certificates to the City to demonstrate 
maintenance of the required coverages throughout the Term of this Agreement.  

5.7.4  Other Insurance Requirements.  

(a) In the event any services hereunder are delegated by Contractor to 
a subcontractor, Contractor shall require all such subcontractors to provide 
statutory workers' compensation insurance and employer's liability insurance for 
all of the subcontractor's employees engaged in the work. The general liability 
insurance required by this section shall cover Contractor's liability for acts of its 
subcontractors or each subcontractor must furnish evidence of insurance 
provided by it meeting all of the requirements of this section.  

(b) Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the insurers issuing 
policies and shall require its subcontractors to do so. The carrying of insurance 
shall not relieve Contractor from any obligation under this Agreement, including 
those imposed by this Section 5.7. If any Claim is made by any third Person 
against Contractor or any subcontractor on account of any occurrence related to 
this Agreement, Contractor shall promptly report the facts in writing to the 
insurance carrier and to the City. If Contractor fails to procure and maintain any 
insurance required by this Agreement, the City may take out and maintain, at 
Contractor's expense, such insurance as is required hereunder and deduct the 
cost thereof from any monies due Contractor.  

5.8 RIGHTS OF CITY TO PERFORM DURING EMERGENCY  

5.8.1  Emergency Collection. Should Contractor, for any reason whatsoever, 
including the occurrence or existence of force majeure as defined in Section 5.14.1, 
refuse or be unable to collect, transport and dispose of all or a substantial portion of the 

33 of 48









35 
 

dissimilar events which are beyond the reasonable control of Contractor. Such other 
events do not include the financial inability of the Contractor to perform, or the failure of 
the Contractor to obtain any necessary permits or licenses from other governmental 
agencies or to obtain the right to use the facilities of any public utility where such failure 
is due solely to the acts or omissions of the Contractor. In the event a labor disturbance 
interrupts collection, transportation and/or disposal of Solid Waste by Contractor as 
required under this Agreement, City may elect to exercise its rights under Section 5.8 of 
this Agreement.  

5.12.2 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor, and not 
an officer, agent, servant or employee of City. Contractor is solely responsible for the 
acts and omissions of its officers, agents: employees, contractors and subcontractors, if 
any. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint 
venture between City and Contractor. Neither Contractor nor its officers, employees, 
agents or subcontractors shall obtain any rights to retirement or other benefits which 
accrue to City's employees.  

5.12.3 Non-Discrimination: The Contractor will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin.  

5.12.4 Law to Govern; Venue. The internal laws of the State of California, 
irrespective of choice of law principles, shall govern this Agreement. In the event of 
litigation between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the 
County of Placer, unless otherwise agreed to by both parties in writing. In the event of 
litigation in a U.S. District Court, exclusive venue shall lie in the Eastern District of 
California.  

5.12.5 Fees and Gratuities. Contractor shall not, nor shall it permit any agent, 
employee or subcontractor employed by it to, request, solicit, demand or accept, either 
directly or indirectly, any compensation or gratuity for the collection of Solid Waste 
otherwise required to be collected under this Agreement not provided for in this 
Agreement.  

5.12.6 Prior Agreements and Amendments. No amendment of this Agreement 
shall be valid unless it is made in writing and duly executed by the parties. This 
Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof, and no promises, representations, warranty or covenant not 
included in this Agreement have been or are relied upon by either party.  

5.12.7 Compliance With Colfax Municipal Code. Contractor shall comply with 
those provisions of the Colfax Municipal Code which are applicable, and with any and 
all amendments to such applicable Colfax Municipal Code provisions during the Term of 
this Agreement, provided that such provisions are not inconsistent with the terms of this 
Agreement.  

5.12.8 Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by facsimile or 

37 of 48



















44 
 

City Facilities & Special Events 

Exhibit B  

 

City Facilities:  

 

Address Facility Containers Frequency 

33 W. Church   Fire Station   2 cans   1x/week on Wed. 

250 Rising Sun   Corp. Yard   6 yd bin 1x/week on Wed 

250 Rising Sun   Corp. Yard   30 yd Green Waste   As needed 

101 Park Hill Dr.   Baseball Field   4 yd bin   1x/week on Wed 

23550 Grandview 

Way 

WWTP 20 yd bin sludge 1x/week on Wed 

 

Special Events:  

 

Event Date(s) Maximum Number of 

Containers 

Independence Day   July 3 or July 4   7 bins -various sizes   

Railroad Days / Founder's 

Day   

2 days in 

September/October   

7 bins -various sizes  

Winter Fest   1st Saturday in December   7 bins -various sizes   

Brew Fest   October 15   7 bins -various sizes   

Spring Green Festival 1 day in May   2 bins -various sizes   

 

 

 

 

 

  











Location QTY. BY ESTIMATE

��������	
� FINAL SUBMITTAL

Limits QTY. CHCK PRICED BY

�����
	 ����
	

AGENCY DATE

�������������� ���������

Item No. Item

Estimated 

Quantity Unit Unit Price Total

� ���������������� ��!� � �� "��#������ "��#������

� $���%�!��&�'!%�!��!��'!���'��(!) � ! "�#������ "��#������

* +�!��$���,�������������$��'���-�!�������������� � �� "��#������ "��#������

. �!�$��� ��!��!�(� $!�!�) *�� �� "���� "�#������

� �!��/!�$���!0������������$! *#��� �� "���� ".#12����

� �!��/!��&!���$������$/!�!�����3��' �1� �4�� "*��� "�.����

2 �!$��!����!��'��! � ! "������ "�#������

1 �!��/!����!� � ! "�#������ "�#������

5 �!����!���0��0!���'��6���!�$��� � ! "*����� "*�����

�� �!��/!���0��0!���'� � ! "������ "������

�� 07,���/�/!�%�8����!��0���/!�����'�0! � ! "1����� "1�����

�� �!��/!������!�!�(�,�%#�',��!�#���0!+�3#�0��/!+ ) *�� �� "���� "�#2�����

�* ��!���'��0�'�,%%��'�(��) � �� "��#������ "��#������

�. ��0+ �!8�/���� �2� � "������ "*�#.�����

�� �������''�!'�!�%�!�(� ) ��� � "1���� "��#.�����

�� &�����8��$&���(� $!�) ��� ��� "������ "*�#������

�2 $��!�&�����8��$&���0�3!�(� $!�) *2� �� "����� "�#������

�1 ��0��0!���'��6���!�$��� �. ! "������ "2#������

�5 �����������!�!�(',��!�) ��� �� "����� "*#������

�� �����������!�!�(�,�%��0�',��!�) �2� �� "*���� "�#5�����

�� �����������!�!�(0��/!+ ) � ! "�#1����� "�#1�����

�� 0��$����!� � ! ".#������ "1#������

�* �+�����$��!���$���!0������������$! .#��� �� "���� "1#������

�. �+�����$��!���$���!0�$/!�!�����3��' 2� �4�� "����� "1.����

�� $���������������$!�(�6���) �#��� �� "���� "�#������

�� $����$/!�!�����3��'�(�6���) �5� �4�� "���� "�#2.����

�2 ��%���9���� � �� "�2#������ "�2#������

!:��;��
<���	:��=>���	���:� "�5�#15�

��	:��=>���	���	��	?
	>��(��@) "�5#�5�

�/!�&!0��0�$������&��%!!������,0!0����,����$���!�

%!��!���!�'��!!���'��!�/��!����,�!������!�$����%���� ���� Base Estimated Construction Total $216,585

0���!�!��!��%!�+!!���&!�!�4,�����!���0������$ �4,�����!��

��*�5

Base Bid

%
�A

	�'��::�/���
�����

�����&�?BA����2.

BEN|EN  PROJECT NO.

FINAL CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

City of Colfax

Colfax N. Main Bike Route

����B����	����

�





VERIFY SCALE

TRUSTED ENGINEERING ADVISORS

Bennett Engineering Services
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, California 95661

T  916.783.4100
F  916.783.4110 CITY OF COLFAX CALIFORNIA

11

2

G-1

CITY OF COLFAX - NORTH MAIN STREET BIKE ROUTE PROJECT

FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL NOTES:

CITY GENERAL NOTES:

SURVEY NOTES:

ENGINEER'S NOTES:

NATIONAL POLLUTION DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (N.P.D.E.S.)

EROSION CONTROL AND WINTERIZATION: 

WINTER CONSTRUCTION RESTRICTIONS:

(NOVEMBER THROUGH MARCH)

STORM DRAINS

GRADING NOTES:

PAVING NOTES:

CITY GENERAL NOTES: (CONTINUED)



VERIFY SCALE

TRUSTED ENGINEERING ADVISORS

Bennett Engineering Services
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, California 95661

T  916.783.4100
F  916.783.4110 CITY OF COLFAX CALIFORNIA

11

3

SC-1

CITY OF COLFAX - NORTH MAIN STREET BIKE ROUTE PROJECT

N

N

LINE TABLE
LINE LENGTH BEARING

CURVE TABLE
CURVE RADIUS LENGTH DELTA







VERIFY SCALE

TRUSTED ENGINEERING ADVISORS

Bennett Engineering Services
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, California 95661

T  916.783.4100
F  916.783.4110 CITY OF COLFAX CALIFORNIA

11

6

L-2

CITY OF COLFAX - NORTH MAIN STREET BIKE ROUTE PROJECT

N

N

ITEM 6B





VERIFY SCALE

TRUSTED ENGINEERING ADVISORS

Bennett Engineering Services
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, California 95661

T  916.783.4100
F  916.783.4110 CITY OF COLFAX CALIFORNIA

11

8

L-4

CITY OF COLFAX - NORTH MAIN STREET BIKE ROUTE PROJECT

N

ITEM 6B





VERIFY SCALE

TRUSTED ENGINEERING ADVISORS

Bennett Engineering Services
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, California 95661

T  916.783.4100
F  916.783.4110 CITY OF COLFAX CALIFORNIA

11

10

PD-1

CITY OF COLFAX - NORTH MAIN STREET BIKE ROUTE PROJECT





1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE JULY 13, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: July 6, 2016 
SUBJECT: Animal Control Contract Renewal 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $29,991 FROM FUND:  100 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 30-2016 authorizing the City Manager to execute a two year 
agreement with Placer County for Animal Control Services and form an ad hoc committee to report back to 
Council if a viable alternative can be engaged.   

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
At the September 9, 2015 meeting, the City Council approved a 1-year contract for animal control services 
with the County which gave notice of potential increased costs in future agreements to share in a portion 
of the capital cost for construction of a new animal shelter facility.  In discussion with the County last year, 
City staff made clear the understanding that Colfax may not participate in the future if costs increase 
substantially. 
 
Council has expressed some concern regarding the cost for animal control services and has investigated 
alternatives, including the possibility of contracting with one of the local veterinarians.   
 
The City Attorney provided an introduction to the topic:   

άThere are surprisingly few animal control requirements imposed by the state because the 
state has delegated most of that authority to local agencies, primarily cities and counties.  
The state does require cities to arrange for impounding dogs that are running loose and for 
disposal of impounded dogs (Food & Agriculture Code § 31105).  Cities must fix the fees for 
impounding dogs and the amount to be paid for keeping dogs. (Food & Agriculture Code § 
31251).  Impounded dogs cannot be destroyed or disposed of without notice to the owner, 
if known (Food & Agriculture Code § 31107).  There are also statutes that mandate 
scanning of dogs for microchips and how impounded dogs must be treated.  
There are similar provisions for impounding, treating, releasing and euthanizing cats and 
other domestic animals although cats are protected by various declawing laws.  ¢ƘŜ άƻǘƘŜǊ 
ŘƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ ŀƴƛƳŀƭǎέ ŎŀǘŜƎƻǊȅ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ǊŀōōƛǘǎΣ ƎǳƛƴŜŀ ǇƛƎǎΣ ƘŀƳǎǘŜǊǎΣ ǇƻǘōŜƭƭƛŜŘ ǇƛƎǎΣ ōƛǊŘǎΣ 
lizards, snakes, turtles and tortoises (Food & Agriculture Code § 31753).   
Insofar as Colfax is concerned, state law mandates tend to focus on the circumstances under 
which dogs, cats and other domestic animals must be impounded, their treatment once 

1 of 12









CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
PLACER COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

DESCRIPTION: AnmaI Control and Care Services
CONTRACTNO. CN
BEGINS: July 1, 2016
ENDS: June3O,2018
ADMINISTERING AGENCY: Animal Services Division

This is an Agreement made and operative as of the 1ST day of July, 2016, between the COUNTY OF
PLACER, hereinafter referred to as ‘COUNTY”, and the CITY OF COLFAX, hereinafter referred to as
“CITY”, both parties being political subdivisions of the State of California.

Whereas, both COUNTY and CITY have the authority to regulate and control animals, and to provide
care to stray and unwanted animals, and in conjunction therewith, to impound, take in and care for
animals in accordance with the law, and

Whereas, both COUNTY and CITY have the authority to remove dead stray domestic and wild animals
from public property and streets, and

Whereas, CITY may not have adequate resources to provide field and enforcement services related to
domestic animals within the CITY, or facilities for the care and custody of stray impounded and unwanted
animals, and for the adoption of homeless animals, and

Whereas, CITY desires that COUNTY house, care for, and offer animals for adoption at the Placer
County Animal Shelter, operated by COUNTY and located in Auburn, and

Whereas, Government Code Section 51301 allows cities and towns to enter into contracts with counties
for the performance of city and town functions, and

Whereas, it is understood and agreed by and between the parties to this Agreement that they wish to
enter into this Agreement in order to establish their respective responsibilities in connection with such
field and shelter services during the term of this Agreement,

Therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements to this contract, it is understood and
agreed by and between the parties as follows:

I DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES:

1.1 Animals seized or picked-up by CITY within CITY’S jurisdiction shall be taken to the
COUNTY Animal Shelter operated and maintained by COUNTY in Auburn, CA. COUNTY
Animal Shelter shall also accept animals presented by owners or others residing within
the jurisdiction of the CITY.

1.2 COUNTY will keep, maintain, and care for animals at the COUNTY Animal Shelter until
redeemed by owner or person entitled to custody thereof, or adopted, as governed by
California Food and Agriculture Code Sections 31108, 31752, and 31753. Animals
displaying a City of Auburn or City of Rocklin license tag shall become available for
adoption or euthanasia after a period of ten (10) working days. Animals not displaying a
City of Auburn or City of Rocklin license tag shall become available for adoption or
euthanasia after the required impound period as mandated by California Food and
Agriculture Code Sections 31 108, 31752, and 31753.

Adoption and euthanasia procedures shall be performed in accordance with California
Penal Code Sections 597 and 599. COUNTY agrees to provide quarantine facilities to
CITY and to provide quarantine kennels or kennels for extraordinary circumstances to
CITY as a part of this Agreement.

Contract for Services
City of Co/fax
Animal Control and Care Services Page 1 of 5















Title 6 - ANIMALS 

Chapter 6.04 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 Colfax, California, Code of Ordinances Page 3 

6.04.060 Enforcement. 

The council shall from time to time make such provisions as shall be proper for the expenses 
incident to the enforcement of the provisions of this chapter, for transportation facilities for the 
poundmaster and for the expense of impounding, feeding and disposing of dogs and other animals.  

(Prior code § 6-1.17)  

6.04.070 Funds. 

The poundmaster shall pay to the dog license collector all fees, costs and mileage collected by him 
or her in the discharge of his or her duties and the dog license collector shall pay all license fees collected 
and all fees, costs and mileage collected by him or her from the poundmaster into the general fund of the 
city or into the county treasury when the contract between the county and the city referred to in Section 
6.04.010 of this chapter is in effect.  

(Prior code § 6-1.18)  

6.04.080 Violation—Penalty. 

It shall be a violation of the provisions of this chapter and punishable as set forth in Chapter 1.24 of 
this code for any person to violate any of the provisions of this chapter or to commit any of the following 
acts:  

A. If unauthorized, to remove from any dog any collar, harness or other device to which a license 
tag for the current year is attached or to remove such license tag therefrom;  

B. To attach to or keep upon or cause or permit to be attached to or kept upon, any dog, any 
license tag issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter except the tag issued for such dog 
or to attach to or keep upon or cause or permit to be attached to or kept upon, any dog or to 
make or cause or permit to be made or to have in possession, any counterfeit or imitation of any 
tag provided for by this chapter;  

C. To have, harbor, control or keep or cause or permit to be harbored or kept, any unlicensed dog 
or to maintain, conduct or operate or cause or permit to be maintained, conducted or operated, 
any unlicensed dog kennel;  

D. For any person owning or having in his or her possession any dog to cause, permit or allow the 
dog to be in or upon any public street, alley or other public grounds or place unless the dog is 
under the immediate charge of a person and securely restrained with a leash not in excess of 
five feet; and  

E. To interfere with, oppose or resist the poundmaster or any other person authorized pursuant to 
the provisions of this chapter to take up and impound dogs and other animals, while the 
poundmaster or such other person is engaged in the performance of any act authorized by this 
chapter.  

(Prior code § 6-1.19)  

12 of 12













https://www.municode.com/library/


https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/ca/anderson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.56NOUS




 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 4  

3.  The qualified patient or primary caregiver shall not cultivate medical marijuana in any 

location within the incorporated City of Colfax other than on the parcel containing his/her 

primary residence. 

4.  The qualifying residence located on the property containing the detached accessory building 

in which medical marijuana is cultivated shall maintain kitchen, bathrooms, and primary 

bedrooms for their intended use and shall not be used for medical marijuana cultivation. 

5.  Medical marijuana cultivation shall not adversely affect the health or safety of nearby 

residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise, noxious gasses, odor, smoke, traffic, vibration, or 

other impacts, or be hazardous due to use or storage of materials, processes, products or wastes. 

6.  Residential and accessory structures used for cultivation shall meet the following criteria: 

¶ The building shall be provided with locking doors and have a working security 

system. The alarm shall be a standard audible residential alarm of at least ninety 

dBA but not exceeding one hundred ten dBA and shall meet the requirements of 

Chapter 8.28 of the Municipal Code. 

 

¶ If the building is a greenhouse then it shall additionally be surrounded by a secure 

solid six-foot-high fence located within ten feet of the greenhouse and equipped 

with a lockable gate. 

 

¶ Any accessory structure shall be located in the rear yard portion of the lot and 

maintain a minimum of a ten-foot setback from the side and rear property lines 

and from any other building on the parcel. 

 

¶ Any structure, of any size, utilized for cultivation of marijuana shall be legally 

constructed with a valid building permit. All electrical and plumbing shall be 

installed with a valid electrical and plumbing permit from the City. Such building 

permits will only be issued to the owner of the property. If the resident is 

proposing to convert an existing accessory structure for cultivation of marijuana, 

an inspection and permit will be required to ensure compliance with the 

ordinance. 

 

¶ Medical marijuana cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two hundred 

watts and shall conform to all applicable codes. 

 

¶ All structures utilized for cultivation shall be ventilated with odor control filters, 

and shall not create an odor, humidity or mold problem on the subject property or 

adjacent properties. 

 

¶ Manufacturing or processing with flammable or noxious liquids or gasses is 

prohibited on parcels cultivating medical marijuana. 

 

 

https://www.municode.com/library/


https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 6  

sections 372 and 373a, Sections 3479-3486.5 of the California Civil Code and other applicable 

provisions of law. The City may also pursue the recovery of its abatement costs in the manner 

provided in Chapter 8.16 of the Colfax Municipal Code. 

17.162.080 - Liability. 

The provisions of this section shall not be construed to protect the property owner(s) of record 

for each legal parcel associated with the cultivation of medical marijuana, lessees, tenants, and 

other participants in the cultivation of medical marijuana, and members of collectives and/or 

cooperatives associated with the cultivation of medical marijuana, from prosecution pursuant to 

any laws that may prohibit the cultivation, sale, and/or possession of controlled substances. 

Moreover, cultivation, sale, possession, distribution, and use of marijuana remain violations of 

federal law as of the date of adoption of the ordinance creating this section and this section is not 

intended to, and does not protect any of the above described persons from arrest or prosecution 

under those federal laws. The property owner(s) of record for each legal parcel associated with 

the cultivation of medical marijuana, lessees, tenants, and other participants in the cultivation of 

medical marijuana, and members of collectives and/or cooperatives associated with the 

cultivation of medical marijuana, assume any and all risk and any and all liability that may arise 

or result under state and federal criminal laws from the cultivation of marijuana. Further, to the 

fullest extent permitted by law, any actions taken under the provisions of this section by any 

public officer or employee of the City of Colfax or City of Colfax itself, shall not become a 

personal liability of such person or the liability of the City of Colfax. 

Section 17.162.090 Marijuana Dispensary -Permit Required to Operate. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in, to conduct or carryon (or to permit to be 

engaged in, conducted or carried on) in or upon his or her Property located within the City, the 

operation of a Marijuana Dispensary unless an Applicant has first obtained and continues to 

maintain in full force and effect a valid Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit issued by the 

City for that Property pursuant to this Chapter. 

 

Section 17.162.100 Imposition of Medical Marijuana Dispensary Permit Fees.  

 

Every application for Marijuana Dispensary permit shall be accompanied by an application fee 

(in an amount established by resolution of the City Council) at a amount calculated to recover the 

City's full cost of reviewing and issuing the Marijuana Dispensary permit) and the filing of a 

complete required application pursuant to this Chapter. The application fee shall not include the 

standard City fees for fingerprinting, photographing, and background check costs and shall be in 

addition to any other business license fee or permit fee imposed by this Code or other 

governmental agencies. 

 

Section 17.162.110 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a Storefront Collective 

Dispensary. 

 

1.  Permissible Zoning for Marijuana Dispensaries. 

Marijuana Dispensaries may only be permitted and located on parcels within the City which are 

not zoned residential.  A conditional use permit is required for the operation of any Marijuana 

Dispensary. 



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 7  

2.  Storefront Locations. 

Marijuana Dispensary shall only be located in a visible store-front type ground-floor location 

which provides good public views of the Dispensary entrance, its windows, and the entrance to 

the Storefront Collective Dispensary premises from a public street. 

 

3.  Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries Allowed Permits. 

Notwithstanding the above, the City may not issue a total of more than three (3) Marijuana 

Dispensary permits at any one time and, subject to the amortization allowance period contained 

within the uncodified portions of the City ordinance adopting amendments to this chapter, no 

more than three (3) permitted or allowed Marijuana Dispensaries may legally operate within the 

City, including specifically those dispensaries which are open and operating in a legal 

nonconforming manner at the time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter. 

 

Section 17.162.120 Marijuana Dispensary - Permit Application Requirements. 

 

1.  Application Filing.  

A complete City of Colfax Permit application submittal packet is required for a Marijuana 

Dispensary permit and it shall be submitted (along with all required fees) and all other 

information and materials required by this Chapter in order to file a complete application for a 

Marijuana Dispensary Permit for a specific Property. All applications for Marijuana Dispensary 

permits shall be filed with the Community Development Department using forms provided by 

the City. It is the responsibility of the Applicant to provide all of the information required for 

approval of the permit. The application shall signed by a Management Member under penalty of 

perjury. 

 

2.  Eligibility for Filing. 

If a Marijuana Dispensary permit application is filed by a non-owner of the Property, it shall also 

be accompanied by a written affirmation from the Property owner expressly allowing the 

Applicant and Management Member to apply for the Permit and acknowledging the Applicant's 

right to use and occupy the Property for the intended Medical Marijuana Dispensary use. 

 

3.  Filing Date.  

The filing date of any application shall be the date when the City officially receives the last 

submission of information or materials required in compliance with the submittal requirements 

specified herein and the application has been deemed complete in writing by the City. 

 

4.  Effect of Incomplete Filing. 

Upon notification that an application submittal is incomplete, the Applicant shall be granted an 

extension of time to submit all materials required to complete the application within thirty (30) 

days. If the application remains incomplete in excess of thirty (30) days the application shall be 

deemed withdrawn and new application submittal shall be required in order to proceed with the 

subject request. 

 

5.  Filing Requirements -Proposed Operational Plan.  

In connection with a permit application, an Applicant for a Marijuana Dispensary permit shall 

provide a detailed "Operations Plan" for the proposed Dispensary and, upon issuance of the 

12 of 18



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 8  

Marijuana Dispensary permit by the City, shall operate the Marijuana Dispensary in accordance 

with the Operations Plan, as approved, at all times. A required Operations Plan shall consist of at 

least the following: 

 

Site Plan and Floor Plan. A Marijuana Dispensary application shall have a proposed site 

plan and floor plan which shows a lobby waiting area at the entrance to the Marijuana 

Dispensary used to receive qualified patients or primary caregivers, and a separate and 

secure designated area for dispensing medical marijuana to qualified patients or 

designated primary caregivers members of the Collective. The primary entrance shall be 

located and maintained clear of barriers, landscaping and similar obstructions so that it is 

clearly·visible from public streets, sidewalks or site driveways. 

 

Storage. A Marijuana Dispensary shall have suitable locked storage on the premises, 

identified and approved as a part of the operational security plan for the after-hours 

storage of medical marijuana. 

 

Security Plans. A Marijuana Dispensary shall provide a plan to provide adequate 

security on the premises of the Dispensary which shall be maintained in accordance with 

the Dispensary security plan approved by the Placer Sheriff representative and as 

reviewed by the Staff Hearing Officer. This plan shall include provisions for adequate 

lighting and alarms in order to insure the safety of persons and to protect the premises 

from theft. All security guards used by dispensaries shall be licensed and employed by a 

state licensed private-party operator security company retained by the Marijuana 

Dispensary and each security guard used shall possess a valid state Department of 

consumer Affairs ñSecurity Guard Cardò at all times. 

 

Security Cameras. The Security Plan shall show how the Property will be monitored at 

all times by closed-circuit television for security purposes. The camera and recording 

system must be of adequate quality, color rendition and resolution to allow the ready 

identification of an individual on or adjacent to the Property. The recordings shall be 

maintained at the Property for a period of not less than thirty (30) days. 

 

Alarm Systems. The Operations Plan shall provide that professionally monitored 

burglary and fire alarm systems shall be installed and such systems shall be maintained in 

good working condition within the Marijuana Dispensary at all times. 

 

Emergency Contact. A Operations Plan shall provide the Placer Sheriff representative 

with the name, cell phone number, and facsimile number of a Management Member to 

act as an on-site community relations staff person to whom the City may provide notice 

of any operating problems. 

 

Public Nuisance. The Operations Plan shall provide for the Management Members of the 

Marijuana Dispensary to take all reasonable steps to discourage and correct objectionable 

conditions that constitute a public or private nuisance in parking areas, sidewalks, alleys 

and areas surrounding the premises and adjacent properties during business hours if 

directly related to the patrons of the subject Storefront Collective Dispensary. 



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 9  

 

Loitering Adjacent to a Dispensary. The Operations Plan shall provide that the 

Management Members will take all reasonable steps to reduce loitering by customers in 

public areas, sidewalks, alleys and areas surrounding the Property and adjacent premises 

during the business hours of the Marijuana Dispensary. 

 

Trash, Litter, Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide that the Management 

Members will keep area which includes the sidewalks adjoining the Dispensary plus ten 

(10) feet beyond property lines (as well as any parking lots under the control of the 

Dispensary) clear of litter, debris, and trash. 

 

Removal of Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide a method for the Management 

Members to promptly remove all graffiti from the Property and parking lots under the 

control of the Marijuana Dispensary within 72 hours of its appearance. 

 

6. Filing Requirements -Information Regarding Marijuana Dispensary Management.  

A Marijuana Dispensary Applicant shall also provide the following Management Member and 

Collective information as part of a Storefront Collective Dispensary application: 

 

The name, address, telephone number, title and function(s) of each Management Member; 

For each Management Member, a fully legible copy of one valid government issued form of 

photo identification, such as a state driver's license or identification card. Acceptable forms of 

government issued identification include, but are not limited to, driver's license or photo identity 

cards issued by the state Department of Motor Vehicles (or equivalent) that meet REAL ID 

benchmarks, a passport issued by the United States or by a foreign government, U.S. Military ID 

cards (active duty or retired military and their dependents) or a Permanent Resident card. 

 

Section 17.162.130 Criteria for Review of Marijuana Dispensary Applications by the City 

Staff Hearing Officer. 

 

1.  Decision on Application.  

Upon an application for a Marijuana Dispensary permit being deemed complete, the Staff 

Hearing Officer shall either issue a Marijuana Dispensary permit, issue a Storefront Collective 

Dispensary permit with conditions in accordance with this Chapter, or deny a Storefront 

Collective Dispensary permit. 

2.  Criteria for Issuance. 

The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City Council on appeal, shall consider the following criteria in 

determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana Dispensary permit: 

 

That the Marijuana Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will 

be consistent with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 

Statutes for providing medical marijuana to qualified patients and primary caregivers and 

the provisions of this Chapter and with the Municipal Code, including the application 

submittal and operating requirements herein. 

 

 



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 10  

 

That the proposed location of the Marijuana Dispensary is not identified by the Placer 

County Sheriff as an area of increased or high crime activity. 

 

For those applicants who have operated other Marijuana Dispensaries within the City, 

that there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests 

in the area of the applicants former location. 

 

That issuance of a Marijuana Dispensary permit for the Dispensary size requested is 

appropriate to meet needs of community for access to medical marijuana. 

 

That issuance of the Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within a 

proximity to this location. 

 

That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state 

law, statute, rule, or regulation and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely 

or anticipated and that compliance with other applicable requirements of the City's 

Zoning Ordinance will be accomplished. 

 

That the Dispensary's Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of 

operation, and a security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing 

potential crime-related problems and as specified in the operating requirements section. 

These features may include, but are not limited to, security onsite; procedure for allowing 

entry; openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and 

surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities, congregating and obstructing public 

ways and neighboring property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting furnishings 

and features that encourage loitering and nuisance behavior. 

That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or 

consistently taken to successfully control the establishment's patrons' conduct resulting in 

disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside or outside the premises, traffic control 

problems, marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private nuisance, or 

interference of the operation of another business.  

 

That the Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse affect on the health, peace, or 

safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a specific 

neighborhood, or contribute to a public nuisance and that the Dispensary will generally 

not result in repeated nuisance activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug 

activity, marijuana use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive 

loitering, illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the 

morning hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 

 

That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City issued permit, 

or any provision of any other local, or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition 

imposed by permits issued in compliance with those laws will not be violated. 

 

 



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 11  

That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state 

a material fact in the application for a permit. 

 

That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business 

acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 

 

3.  Maintenance of Appropriate Collective Records Regarding Cultivation and Compliance 

 

Cultivation Records. Every permitted Marijuana Dispensary shall maintain on-site (i.e., 

at the Property designated for the operation of the Marijuana Dispensary) the medical 

marijuana cultivation records of the Marijuana Dispensary. These records shall be signed 

under penalty of perjury by each Management Member responsible for the cultivation 

and shall identify the location or locations at which the Marijuana Dispensary s medical 

marijuana is being cultivated. Such records shall also record the total number of 

marijuana plants cultivated or stored at each cultivation location. The Storefront 

Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory record documenting the dates and 

amounts of medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary Property, if any, as 

well as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana distributed from the permitted 

Dispensary. 

 

Financial Records. The Dispensary shall also maintain a written accounting record or 

ledger of all cash, receipts, credit card transactions, reimbursements, (including any in-

kind contributions), and any and all reasonable compensation for services provided by the 

Management Members or other members of the Marijuana Dispensary, as well as records 

of all operational expenditures and costs incurred by Marijuana Dispensary in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting practices and standards typically applicable to 

business records. 

 

4. Dispensary Record Retention Period.  

The records required above by subparagraphs (1), (2), and (3) of this subsection shall be 

maintained by the Medical Marijuana Dispensary for a period of three (3) years and shall be 

made available to the City upon a written request. 
 

Section 17.162.140 City Access to and Inspection of Required Storefront Collective 

Dispensary Records. 

 

Section 17.162.150 Imposition of tax. 

The City Council declares that the ordinance codified in this chapter is adopted to implement a 

monthly tax on marijuana sales and/or provision, of (10 or 15 percent to be determined by City 

Council) payable to the City, which complies with the requirements and limitations contained in 

California Revenue and Taxation Code Division and subject to approval by November 2016 

ballot measure. 

 



 

Medical Marijuana Draft Ordinance 12  

On all sales of medical marijuana, and in the event the casual/recreational use of marijuana is 

legalized or decriminalized in California, any person or entity selling or providing marijuana 

within the City shall pay to the City a monthly tax of 15 percent, of its gross proceeds from such 

sales or provision. 

Section 17.162.160 Purpose. 

The purpose of this tax is to raise revenue to fund wastewater services. 

Section 17.162.170 Customers. 

This tax shall not be specifically charged or assessed to any customers or consumers of 

marijuana subject to this tax. Payment and remittance of the tax to the City shall solely be the 

responsibility of the person or entity selling or providing the marijuana in the City. 

Section 17.162.180 Proceeds. 

ñProceedsò shall mean gross receipts of any kind, including, without limitation, membership 

dues; the value of in-kind contributions, exchanges, bartered goods or services; the value of 

volunteer work; reimbursements provided by members regardless of form; cash payments; and 

anything else of value obtained by any person or entity for legally selling or providing marijuana 

in the City. 

Section 17.162.190 Modification, repeal or amendment. 

The City Council may repeal this chapter, or amend it in a manner which does not result in an 

increase in the amount of the tax or broaden the scope of the tax imposed herein, without further 

voter approval. If the City Council repeals any provision of this chapter, it may subsequently 

reenact it without voter approval, as long as the reenacted provision does not result in an increase 

in the amount of the tax or broaden the scope of the tax imposed herein. 

Section 17.162.200 Administration. 

The City Manager, or designee, and/or the City Council by resolution, may promulgate 

regulations to implement and administer the provisions of this chapter. 

Section 17.162.210 Penalties. 

Any entity that fails to pay the taxes required by this chapter within 30 days after the due date 

shall pay, in addition to the taxes, a penalty for nonpayment in a sum equal to 25 percent of the 

total amount due. Failure to pay all of the taxes required and penalties within 60 days after the 

tax due date shall result in the immediate suspension of the permit and no sales may be made by 

the entity. Additional penalties will be assessed in the following manner: 10 percent shall be 

added on the first day of each calendar month following the month of the imposition of the 25 

percent penalty if the tax remains unpaidðup to a maximum of 100 percent of the tax payable 

on the due date. Receipt of the tax payment by the City shall govern the determination of 

whether the tax is delinquent. Postmarks will not be accepted as adequate proof of a timely 

payment. 

 




	00A 160713 Agenda
	02A Placer County Treasurer Presentation
	03A 160622 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary May 2016
	160713 SR Cash Summary May 2016
	160713 Cash Summary Data May 2016

	03C Audit Services
	160713 SR Audit Engagement
	Resolution 19-2016 Audit Services - Richardson
	Engagement Letter 2016

	03D Oil Recycling Grant
	160713 SR Oil Recycling Grant
	Resolution 26-2016 Oil Recycling Grant

	03E Mark Thomas Roundabout Evaluation
	170713 SR Mark Thomas Roundabout proposal 
	Resolution 27-2016 South Auburn Roundabout
	Exhibit A Letter Colfax Roundabout 6-22-2016
	MTC & Co Contract 7-13-16

	06A Recology Contract
	160713 SR Recology Contract Amendment
	Resolution 28-2016 Recology Contract Amendment
	Recology Contract Amendment Final 7.7.2016
	Recology Street Sweeping Map 2016
	Page 1


	06B No Main Bike Project
	160713 SR N. Main Street Bike Lanes 
	Resolution 29-2016 Approve PSandE for No Main Bike Route
	15319 Final Estimate 20160608
	15319-Colfax-N Main Street Bike Route-FINAL

	06C Animal Control
	160713 SR Animal Control Contract
	Resolution 30-2016 Animal Control
	160701 Animal Control Contract
	CMC Chapter 6.04
	Chapter 6.04 GENERAL PROVISIONS


	06D Medical Marijuana
	160713 SR Medical Marijuana
	160713 Hesch Comments and Concerns Marijuana Ordinance
	160525 Marijuana Ordinance Proposal




